
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A WORKSHOP AND REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATE:    TUESDAY, APRIL 23, 2024 

TIME:    5:30 PM 

PLACE:    PHARR CITY HALL 

    2nd FLOOR CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

118 SOUTH CAGE BLVD. 

    PHARR, TEXAS 78577  

     

PRESIDING: S. DAVID DEANDA, JR, CHAIRMAN 
 

An electronic copy of the agenda packet can be obtained at www.hcrma.net 
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
INVOCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER OF A WORKSHOP 
 

1. Review of Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority.  

2. Review of Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Compliance Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
3. Review of the Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending March 31, 2024. 

 
ADJOURNMENT OF WORKSHOP 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A REGULAR MEETING 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Management Activity for 365 Tollway Project – HCRMA Staff 

B. Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project – Ramon Navarro IV, HCRMA. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters  listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing 
Body and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no  separate discussion of  these  items; however,  if 
discussion is desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
The Governing Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item on this agenda, whether or not 
such  item(s) are posted as an Executive Session  Item, at any  time during  the meeting when authorized by 
provisions of the Open Public Meeting Act.) 

 
A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held March 26, 2024.  
B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from March 7, 2024 to April 5, 2024.  
C. Approval of Financial Reports for February 2024. 



D. Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending March 31, 2024. 
E. Resolution 2024‐25 – Approval and Consideration of Contract Amendment Number 3 (Supplemental) to 

the construction contract with Pulice Construction, Inc. to revise the payment schedule.  
 
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA  
A. Resolution 2024‐21 – Consideration and Approval of Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Statement and 

Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
B. Resolution 2024‐22 – Consideration and Approval of Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Compliance Report for the 

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
A. None.  

 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. None. 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072  (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 
A. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Change Order Number 5 to that certain contract 

with Pulice Construction Inc. for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Financial Assistance Agreement with the Texas 

Department of Transportation for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 

Surveying and Environmental Services to include construction material testing (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
D. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the voluntary acquisition of  real property  for 

various  parcels  for  the  365  Tollway  Project  and  International  Bridge  Trade  Corridor  Project  (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

E. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the acquisition,  including  the use of Eminent 
Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

G. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Services Agreements (Section 551.071 
T.G.C.). 
 
 
 
 

  ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

 

I,  the Undersigned Authority, do hereby certify  that  the attached agenda of  the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board in the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority  office  (203 W. Newcombe Ave,  Pharr,  Texas  78577),  a  place  convenient  and  readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the  17thday of April 2024 at 5:00 pm and 
will remain so posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting in accordance 
with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
                                           Maria E. Alaniz         
                Administrative Assistant 

 
Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Maria E. 
Alaniz at 956‐402‐4762 at least 96 hours before the meeting. 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 

Public  Comment  Policy:  “At  the  beginning  of  each  HCRMA meeting,  the  HCRMA  will  allow  for  an  open  public 

forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one‐half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 

allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak.  Speakers addressing the Board through a translator will be allowed 

a maximum of six (6) minutes.   

 

All  individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to do so, prior to the open comment period. For 

meetings being held by  telephonic or videoconference,  individuals may contact Maria. E. Alaniz at  (956) 402‐4762 

before 5:00 pm day of the meeting.  

  

 The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to address issues or topics that are under 

the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part of the posted agenda for the meeting, 

HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No action or discussion shall be taken on 

issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. Members of the public may be recognized 

on posted agenda  items deemed appropriate by  the Chairman as  these  items are considered, and  the  same  time 

limitations applies.” 

 

Note:  Participation by Telephone/Video Conference Call – One or more members of the HCRMA Board of Directors 

may participate  in  this meeting  through  a  telephone/video  conference  call,  as  authorized by  Sec. 370.262,  Texas 

Transportation Code.    



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 1 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     1                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/15/24                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/23/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 1 – REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR 2023 FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.          

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Review of annual Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report prepared by Burton  

McCumber & Longoria, LLP for Fiscal Year 2023.  The report is required by Texas Administrative 
Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G §26.65(a) Annual Reports to the Commission.  

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Presentation only.          
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 2 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/15/24                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/23/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 2 – REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR 2023 COMPLIANCE 

REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.    
     

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Review of Annual Compliance Report for Fiscal Year 2023.  The report is required by Texas  

Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority and  
Audits), as amended            

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Review only.           
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
Compliance Report 

Texas Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G 

§26.65(a) Annual Reports to the Commission 

Compliance Rule Compliance Statement Certification 
Rule §26.61 Written Reports:   
The annual operating and capital budgets 
adopted by the RMA year.   

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA adopted the FY 2024 
Operating & Capital Budget on 
December 12, 2023. 

Any annual financial information and notices 
of material events required to be disclosed 
under Rule 15c2-12 of the SEC.  

Not applicable.  

To the extent not disclosed in another 
report required in this compliance report, a 
statement of any surplus revenue held by 
the RMA and a summary of how it intends 
to use the surplus revenue.  

Not applicable. HCRMA does not 
have surplus revenue at this 
time. 

 

An independent auditor's review of the 
reports of investment transactions prepared 
under Government Code, §2256.023.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2023 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on April 23, 2024, which 
included a review of investment 
transactions. 

Rule §26.62 Annual Audit:   
The RMA shall maintain its books and 
records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United 
States and shall have an annual financial and 
compliance audit of such books and records.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2023 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on April 23, 2024. 

The annual audit shall be submitted to each 
county or city that is a part of the RMA 
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal 
year, and conducted by an independent 
certified public accountant. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA has made the financial 
statement and independent 
auditors report available to all 
interested parties. 

All work papers and reports shall be 
retained for a minimum of four years from 
the date of the audit. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA’s record retention policy 
in compliance with this 
requirement. 

Rule §26.63 Other Reports to Counties and 
Cities: 

  

Provide other reports and information 
regarding its activities promptly when 
requested by the counties or cities. 

HCRMA is in compliance. All reports and activities are 
posted on the HCRMA web site 
at www.hcrma.net. 

Rule §26.64 Operating Records:   
The Department will have access to all 
operating and financial records of the RMA. 
The executive director will provide 
notification if access is desired by the 
department. 

HCRMA is in compliance.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 3 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3                                 

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          04/15/2024                                                          
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       04/23/2024 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 3 – QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE   

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2024.         
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Presentation of the quarterly investment report.        
 

2. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Public  
Funds Investment Act Section 2256                  

 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Report Only.           
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
   
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_    None 
 
10. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved       X  None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved        X  None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved        X  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1A 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 X AGENDA ITEM      1A 
DATE SUBMITTED 
MEETING DATE 

04/18/2024 
04/23/2024_

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON PROGRAM MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY FOR 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT
AND HIDALGO COUNTY LOOP

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:   X  Yes  No

Report on 365 Tollway, Section 4, and Section A West and Section C Projects

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes  No   X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only. .  

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved   Disapproved   X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:  Approved   Disapproved    X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X_  None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved  None 

 Approved  Disapproved _  None 12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation: X

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved  Disapproved  _  None 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
FOR APRIL 2024

1

www.hcrma.net

HCRMA Administrative Staff
Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM, Chief Constr. Eng.

Celia Gaona, CIA, Chief Auditor/Compliance Ofcr.

Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Ofer.

General Engineering Consultant 
HDR ENGINEERING, INC.

Report on HCRMA Development Activities
Chief Construction Engineer – Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM

HCRMA Board of Directors
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Vice-Chairman

Juan Carlos Del Angel, Secretary/Treasurer

Gabriel Kamel, Director 

Francisco "Frank" Pardo, Director 

Sergio Saenz, Director

Michael J. Williamson, Director

http://www.hcrma.net/


Overview
365 TOLL Project Overview

+ Granjeno Wetland Mitigation Project
 Segment 4 / Section A West Plan
Overweight Permit Summary

MISSION STATEMENT:

To provide our customers with a rapid and 
reliable alternative for the safe and efficient 
movement of people, goods, and services.

www.hcrma.net
2

http://www.hcrma.net/


www.hcrma.net3

http://www.hcrma.net/


4
www.hcrma.net

IBTC (Segs. 1-3
Total Constr. Cost (2023): $223M
Total Dev. Cost (2023): 285M
Available Funding: $18.5M
NEPA clearance expected: May 
2023

http://www.hcrma.net/


[SEGS. 1 & 2] LIMITS FROM 0.8 MI. W. FM 396 / ANZ. HWY. 
TO US 281 / BSIF CONNECTOR [365 SEG. 3 COMPLETED] 
[SEG. 4 FUTURE] LIMITS FROM FM 16 / CONWAY
TO 0.8 MI. W. FM396 / ANZALDUAS HIGHWAY

5
www.hcrma.net

NEPA CLEARANCE
07/03/2015

100% ROW ACQUIRED
PH 1: 365 SEG. 3

LET: 08/2015
COMPLETED

PH 2: 365 TOLL
SEGS. 1 & 2
LET:11/2021

OPEN: 01/2026

MAJOR MILESTONES:

http://www.hcrma.net/


6 www.hcrma.net

GRANJENO WETLAND MITIGATION SITE

http://www.hcrma.net/


 7 www.hcrma.net

LETTING:
PROJECT DETAILS:
The HCRMA Granjeno Wetland Mitigation Site project is for the restoration of 23.88 acres of land, including 
approximately 17 acress planned specifically for wetland restoration. The project consists of grading and compaction 
of approximatley 19 acres to establish a wetland which includes the placement of a clay liner and plant root zone soil 
strata. It also includes berm grading and compaction of approximately 6 acres of upland area. The project includes 
construction of an access driveway and road including maintenance and brush clearing/trimming. The project includes 
construction of a groundwater well with controls, approximately 3,000 linear feet of pvc distribution pipe, associated 
equipment, and a security fence.

 (MANDATORY) In-person or Virtual Attendance Option.

Pre-Bid Meeting: Tuesday, February 20, 2024, 2 P.M. C.S.T.

 All inquiries submitted by 3:00PM CST on Friday, March 8,2024.  Inquiries beyond this date were not 
responded to.

Electronic bids via CivCast received until 3:00 P.M. C.S.T., Wednesday, March 13, 2024.

Bid opening date & time: Wednesday, March 13, 2024, Opening 3:05 P.M. C.S.T.

 3.26.24 Sole bid: MitRes Services, LLC , Board directive to implement cost saving measures

HCRMA \ HDR discussions on options and efficiencies to bring project back within budget

http://www.hcrma.net/




 9 www.hcrma.net

OVERWEIGHT / OVERSIZE CORRIDOR SEGMENTS

http://www.hcrma.net/


*

10
97

www.hcrma.net

►ACCUMULATED OVERWEIGHT REPORT:

January 14, 2014 - March 31, 2024

Total Permits Issued: 333,215
Total Amount Collected: $  58,628,494 
▪Convenience Fees: $  1,149,294 
▪Total Permit Fees: $  57,479,200 

-Pro Miles: $   999,645 

-TxDOT: $   48,857,320 

-HCRMA $   7,622,235 
*Effective November 13, 2017, permit fee increased from $80 to $200

http://www.hcrma.net/


11
7

www.hcrma.net

►OVERWEIGHT REPORT FOR 2024: 

January 1, 2024- March 31, 2024
Total Permits Issued: 18,508
Total Amount Collected: $  3,783,932 
▪Convenience Fees: $  82,332 
▪Total Permit Fees: $  3,701,600 

-Pro Miles: $  55,524 

-TxDOT: $    3,146,360 

-HCRMA $ 499,716 

http://www.hcrma.net/


12 www.hcrma.net

JANUARY 1, 2024 – MARCH 31, 2024 

NOTES:
1. The accumulated permit count for 2022: 8,269 in comparison to 2023: 11,040

Annual increase comparison of: 2022: 10,239 +[124%] and 2023:+7,468[68%]

2. Monthly permit count of  6,273 represents a 57.5% (increase, 2,291) compared to the same month in 2023 (3,982).

http://www.hcrma.net/


Item 1B 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 X AGENDA ITEM     1B
DATE SUBMITTED 
MEETING DATE 

04/18/2024_ 
04/23/2024_

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON PROJECT MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY FOR 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT
AND HIDALGO COUNTY LOOP

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:   X  Yes  No

Report on 365 Tollway, Section 4, and Section A West and Section C Projects

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes  No   X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only. .  

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved   Disapproved   X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:  Approved   Disapproved    X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X_  None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved  None 

 Approved  Disapproved _  None 12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation: X

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved  Disapproved  _  None 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
FOR April 2024

1

www.hcrma.net

HCRMA Administrative Staff
Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM, Chief Constr. Eng.

Celia Gaona, CIA, Chief Auditor/Compliance Ofcr.

Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Ofer.

General Engineering Consultant
HDR Engineering, Inc.

Report on HCRMA Construction Activities
Chief Construction Engineer – Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM

HCRMA Board of Directors
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Vice-Chairman

Juan Carlos Del Angel, Secretary/Treasurer 
Gabriel Kamel, Director

Sergio Saenz, Director 

Francisco “Frank” Pardo, Director

Michael J. Williamson, Director

http://www.hcrma.net/


www.hcrma.net2

http://www.hcrma.net/


[SEGS. 1 & 2] LIMITS FROM 0.8 MI. W. FM 396 / ANZ. HWY. 
TO US 281 / BSIFCONNECTOR [365 SEG. 3 COMPLETED] 
[SEG. 4 FUTURE] LIMITS FROM FM 16 / CONWAY
TO 0.8 MI. W. FM396 / ANZALDUAS HIGHWAY

3
www.hcrma.net

100% ROW ACQUIRED
PH 1: 365 SEG. 3

LET: 08/2015 
COMPLETED

PH 2: 365 TOLL
SEGS. 1 & 2
LET:11/2021

OPEN: 01/2026

MAJOR MILESTONES: 
NEPA CLEARANCE 

07/03/2015

http://www.hcrma.net/




SEPTEMBER 8, 2022
OCTOBER 3, 2022
DECEMBER 9, 2022

DECEMBER 16, 2022
FEBRUARY 6, 2023

FEBRUARY 14, 2023
FEBRUARY 28, 2023
MARCH 13, 2023
MARCH 14, 2023
MARCH 28, 2023
OCTOBER 28, 2023
March 26, 2024

-Request for Proposals was released
-Mandatory Pre-bid meeting was conducted with In-Person or Virtual Attendance option
-Five Proposals were received for the 365 Toll Collection System, Integration, and
Maintenance Project
-Compliance reviews were conducted of all electronic bids;
-Evaluation committee [HCRMA staff and HDR [GEC]] thoroughly reviewed proposals,
conducted oral presentations and in accordance with RFP’s two-step scoring process
-Proposal bid prices opened, evaluated, scored by evaluation committee
-First Executive
-Second Executive Briefing
-Negotiation of contract terms, condition, & BAFO
-Award of contract to SICE, Inc. for $13,980,669 with a score of 905
-Single Gantry amendment
- CO#1 $645,170 for single gantery implementation

365 TOLLWAY COLLECTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION, 
INTEGRATION and MAINTENANCE PROJECT

5



6 www.hcrma.net

GRANJENO WETLAND MITIGATION SITE

http://www.hcrma.net/


7 www.hcrma.net

LETTING:
PROJECT DETAILS:
The HCRMA Granjeno Wetland Mitigation Site project is for the restoration of 23.88 acres of land, including 
approximately 17 acress planned specifically for wetland restoration. The project consists of grading and compaction 
of approximatley 19 acres to establish a wetland which includes the placement of a clay liner and plant root zone soil 
strata. It also includes berm grading and compaction of approximately 6 acres of upland area. The project includes 
construction of an access driveway and road including maintenance and brush clearing/trimming. The project includes 
construction of a groundwater well with controls, approximately 3,000 linear feet of pvc distribution pipe, associated 
equipment, and a security fence.

 (MANDATORY) In-person or Virtual Attendance Option.

Pre-Bid Meeting: Tuesday, February 20, 2024, 2 P.M. C.S.T.

 All inquiries shall be submitted by 3:00PM CST on Friday, March 8,2024.  Inquiries beyond this date will not be
responded to.

 Electronic bids via CivCast will be received until 3:00 P.M. C.S.T., Wednesday, March 13, 2024.

 Bid opening date & time: Wednesday, March 13, 2024, Until 3:05 P.M. C.S.T.

 Sole bid: MitRes Services, LLC
3.26.24 Sole bid: MitRes Services, LLC , Board directive to implement cost saving measures
HCRMA \ HDR discussions on options and efficiencies to bring project back within budget

http://www.hcrma.net/






EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 The Notice to Proceed (NTP) was issued to Pulice Construction Inc. (PCI) on February 15, 2022, with time

charges commencing on March 17, 2022.

 The work under this contract shall be substantiallycompleted within 1,264 CALENDAR days [September 22,
2025] After Substantial Completion, Pulice will be allowed up to an additional 60 calendar days for Final
Acceptance. Therefore, all improvements must be final accepted by [November 21, 2025].

 Working days will be charged Sunday through Saturday, including all holidays [with exception of:

New Year’s Day (January 1st)

Independence Day (July 4th)
Labor Day (1st Mondayin the month of September)
Thanksgiving Day and day after (4th Thursday and Friday in the month of November); 
Christmas Eve and Day (December 24th and 25th)]

regardless of weather conditions, material availability, or other conditions not under the 
control of the Contractor, except as expressly provided for in the Contract. If Contractor fails to 
complete the work on or before the contract time, Pulice Construction Inc. agrees to pay the
Authority $ 16,500 per day as liquidated damages to cover losses, expenses and damages of the 
Authority for every Calendar Day which the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion of
the Project.

 The total construction cost submitted $ 295,932,420.25.

10



40% Owner Savings: $14,208,622.30 Reduced from original Project

VECP calculations for Contract Price of $281,723,797.95
VECP Gross Savings $38,010,382.63
Less est. Total Design Cost $1,943,648.45 (Schematics + Final Design)
Less Est. Owner’s Fees $545,178.43 (GEC, Environmental, T&R Costs)
VECP Net Savings $35,521,555.75
60% Contractor Saving: $21,312,933.45 Paid as Progress Payments

HCRMA 365 TOLL PROJECT CSJ#0921-02-368: CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

Four (5) approved Changes Order(s): [$9,711, 974.93l +0 days

CO#1 11/11/2021 entering VECP process +000 days $000,000,000.00 .0%
CO#2 12/21/2021 VECP Plan Revisions +000 days $(14,208,622.30) (4.80%)
CO#3 04/26/2022 VECP Contractor Risk +000 days $000,000,000.00 (0%)
CO#4 01/24/2023 Drill Shafts +000 days $171,516.59 0.06%
CO#5 06/24/2023 VECP True Realized Savings +000 days $4,325,130.78 1.44%
CO#6 11/29/2023 PLAN REVISIONS \ FIELD CHANGES +000 days TBD [PENDING]

CHANGE ORDERS:

Change Order No.1 Summary: November 10, 2021, Resolution 2021-54

• The Primary purpose of Change Order No. 1 is for the HCRMA and contractor to enter a defined VECP proves to reduce the overall cost of the project 
based on a 30% design furnished by the contractor.

• Cost to the Project include: 30% of 5% of the project savings to the project or direct costs to the contractor, whichever is less. These costs are intended 
to pay the contractor for design work achieve a 30% design.

• The HCRMA assumes ownership of all design work developed by the contractor, and cost savings are shared by the HCRMA and contractor by 40% and 
60% respectively.

Change Order No. 2 Summary: December 20, 2021, Resolution 2021-78

• Change order No. 2 amended the contract price from $295,932,420.25 to $281,723,797.95.
• By execution of Change Order No. 1, the contractor completed a 30% design to an effort to estimate cost savings for the project. Payment for the 

contractor’s initial design work is $613,285.06 in accordance with calculations presented in Change Order No. 1. This is the only cost due to the 
contractor based on the execution of Change Order No. 2 and is non-participating.

• Notice to proceed was issued 2/15/2022, the HCRMA reimburse the contractor for the remaining design costs to not exceed 5% of the total cost 
savings. Payments made will be based upon design milestones at 60%, 90% and 100% completion and acceptance.

11



Change Order No. 3 Summary: April 26, 2022, Resolution 2022-36

• As provided for Contract Amendment #1 and Change Order No. 2, the Contractor’s share of the net savings includes the “Contractor Risk” that the 
actual costs of implementing the approved VECP concepts in Change Order No. 2 may not result in the saving approved by the parties. To the extent 
total actual costs exceed the total amount approved, all overages due to errors, oversights, omissions, additions, or corrections to final units, final 
quantities, or final unit prices or costs increases shall be deducted from Contractor 60% portion of the net savings.

• To the extent actual costs exceed the amounts presented in Exhibit A, Contractor agrees that such overages due to errors, oversight, omission additions, 
or corrections to final units, quantities or unit pricing shall be deducted from contractor’s 60% portion of the net savings (the “Contractor Risk”).

• Contractor VECP Savings Payments.

Contractor’s share of the savings shall be calculated and paid out as progress payments under the terms of the contract, as follows:

Construction Progress Proposed Savings Payment

20% Completion $4,262,586.69

40% Completion $4,262,586.69

60% Completion $4,262,586.69

80% Completion $4,262,586.69

Final Acceptance $4,262,586.69

$21,312,933.45

The parties agrees that if the Savings are not apparent or justified during a designated progress period, all, or part of any such Savings Payment, on the 
recommendation of the General Engineering Consultant, may be (i)deferred to the next progress period or (iii) reduced to reflect the Contractor’s Risk for 
unrealized Savings/overages.

Change Order No. 4 Summary: January 24, 2023, Resolution 2023-05

Change Order No. 4 removes 1,524LF of Item 416-6005 Drill Shaft (42”) introduces 48” drill shafts to incorporate detailed, finalized quantities and unit 
costs; and establishes State/Federal participation on odified unit costs, assuring compliance with the standard specifications included within the contract. 
Change Order No. 4 introducing 1,585LF of Item 416-6006 Drill Shaft (48 IN) at a unit cost of $308.39/LF for a net cost of $171,516.59 to be fully paid by 
HCRMA [Owner].

12



Change Order No. 5 Summary: June 24, 2023, Resolution 2023-30

In Lieu of $38,010,382.63 savings, they only can truly account for $30,565,888. They are claiming that of the $7,444,494.63 shortfall, only $3,186,525.45 is 
from their 60%; additional $4,257,969.18 are contributable to busts in original plans, design errors and quantity mistakes and are to be attributed to 
HCRMA contingency[$ 5,000,000>>$570,514.23].

• As provided for Contract Amendment #1 and Change Order No. 2, the Contractor’s share of the net savings includes the “Contractor Risk” that the 
actual costs of implementing the approved VECP concepts in Change Order No. 2 may not result in the saving approved by the parties. To the extent 
total actual costs exceed the total amount approved, all overages due to errors, oversights, omissions, additions, or corrections to final units, final 
quantities, or final unit prices or costs increases shall be deducted from Contractor 60% portion of the net savings. The unrealized savings presented 
are $2,367,208.20

o To the extent actual costs exceed the amounts presented in Exhibit A, Contractor agrees that such overages due to errors, oversight, omission 
additions, or corrections to final units, quantities or unit pricing shall be deducted from contractor’s 60% portion of the net savings (the 
“Contractor Risk”), revised shall be $18,945,725.25

o Contractor VECP Savings Payments are amended, as such:

Contractor’s share of the savings shall be calculated and paid out as progress payments under the terms of the contract, as follows:

**[$18,945,725.25 - $4,262,586.69 = $14,683,138.56 / 4 = $3,670,784.64]

Construction Progress Proposed Savings Payment Paid Date
**20% Completion $4,262,586.69 12/22/22

40% Completion $4,262,586.69 $3,670,784.64

60% Completion $4,262,586.69 $3,670,784.64

80% Completion $4,262,586.69$3,670,784.64

Final Acceptance $4,262,586.69$3,670,784.64

$21,312,933.45 $18,945,725.25

13



PROJECT PRODUCTION

14

 CAPTURING VECP PACKETS
2/8/23
3/8/23

VECP Team met, exchanged concepts,  formats 
VECP meeting formal report submitted

4/20/23 VECP concepts  completed and negotiations  underway 
7/07/23  New revised baseline schedule
7/10/23  CO#5 terms and conditions
2/23/24   CO#6 conditions and negotiations

 FORMAL SUBMITTALS, REVIEW OF DOCUMENTS
• RFIs 158
• SUBMITTALS 164 
03/22/2024

 TESTING [Soils/Concrete]
• Levees / embankment / select fill
• Drill Shafts / Bents / Slab
• Roadway: limed subgrade / Cement Treated base
• MSE backfill
• Irrigation Structures

 ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICES [SW3Ps] Archeological sites

 EMBANKMENT Shary / SH336 / SP115 / Highline/ McColl /Anaya
 UNDERGROUND WORK Storm Sewer / Irrigation structures / Tolling Conduit
 LEVEE WORK
 Bridge Substructure FM494 / Floodway / SP115 / SH336 / McColl / Ditch Bridge / Highline

• BEAMS SET: McColl / Canal Bridge / Floodway/ FM494
 RETAINING WALLS Highline / Anaya / SP115/ SH336  / Jackson











GRANJENO / ANZALDUAS (LOOKING EAST) 

















27 www.hcrma.net

http://www.hcrma.net/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 2A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2A                       

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        04/14/2024                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE     04/23/2024  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S REGULAR 

MEETING HELD MARCH 26, 2024.                                                                     _                     __ 
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of Minutes for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting held March 26, 2024.                                                                                          _ 
                                                           
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular 

Meeting held on March 26, 2024.__________                                                      ___________                     
.            

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
10.       Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved    X    None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – March 26, 2024 
 
 

 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HIDALGO 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

The Hidalgo  County  Regional Mobility Authority  Board  of Directors  convened  for  a  Regular  Board Meeting  on 

Tuesday, March 26, 2024, at 5:30 pm at the Pharr City Hall, 2nd Floor City Commission Chambers, 118 S. Cage, Blvd, 

Pharr, TX 78577, with the following participating: 

 

     Board Members:                  Ezequiel Reyna, Vice‐Chairman 
                                                     Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer   

 Frank Pardo, Director  
 Gabriel Kamel, Director 

                                                     Michael Williamson, Director  
           

                        Absent:                David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
        Sergio Saenz, Director  
         

                                  Staff:                 Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 
Ramon Navarro, Chief Construction Engineer  
Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer 
Maria Alaniz, Executive Assistant  

           Richard Cantu, Cantu Law Company, Legal Counsel 
        Colby Echols, Hilltop Securities, Financial Advisor 
     
   
     
  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

      
Vice‐Chairman Reyna led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

      
INVOCATION 
 
Mrs. Maria Alaniz led the invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A REGULAR MEETING  
 
Vice‐Chairman Reyna called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
   

PUBLIC COMMENT 
   

No Comments 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Management Activity for 365 Tollway Project – HCRMA Staff 

              Mr. Ramon Navarro reported on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project. No action taken. 
 



HCRMA Minutes – March 26, 2024 
 
 

B. Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project – Ramon Navarro IV, HCRMA. 
              Mr. Ramon Navarro reported on the construction activity for 365 Tollway Project. No action taken. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

Motion by Frank Pardo with a second by Michael Williamson, to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held February 27, 2024 and the Special Board Meeting 
held March 5, 2024. 
Approved  the Minutes  for  the  Regular  Board Meeting  held  February  27,  2024  and  the  Special  Board 
Meeting held March 5, 2024. 
 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from February 8, 2024 to March 6, 2024.  
Approved the Project & General Expense Report for the period from February 8, 2024 to March 6, 2024.  
 

C. Approval of Financial Reports for January 2024. 
Approved the Financial Reports for January 2024. 
 

D. Resolution  2024‐16  –  Consideration  and  Approval  of  one‐year  extension  to  the  Investment  Advisory 
Service Agreement between Hilltop Securities Asset Management, LLC and the Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority.  
Approved  Resolution  2024‐16  –  Consideration  and  Approval  of  one‐year  extension  to  the  Investment 
Advisory Service Agreement between Hilltop Securities Asset Management, LLC and the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority.  
 

E. Resolution 2024‐17 – Consideration and Approval of a no‐cost time extension to the Professional Service 
Agreement with Leonel Garza & Associates to provide appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project. 
Approved Resolution 2024‐17 – Consideration and Approval of a no‐cost time extension to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Leonel Garza & Associates to provide appraisal services for the 365 
Tollway Project. 
 

F. Resolution 2024‐18 – Consideration and Approval of a no‐cost time extension to the Professional Service 
Agreement with HLH Appraisal Services to provide review appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project. 
Approved Resolution 2024‐18 – Consideration and Approval of a no‐cost time extension to the 
Professional Service Agreement with HLH Appraisal Services to provide review appraisal services for the 
365 Tollway Project. 

 
3. REGULAR AGENDA  

 
A. Resolution 2024‐19 – Approval of Award of Contract to Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, 

and Bracewell, LLP, for professional legal services to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
Motion by Carlos Del Angel, with a second by Gabriel Kamel, to approve Resolution 2024‐19 – Approval 
of  Award  of  Contract  to  Escobedo &  Cardenas,  LLP,  Cantu  Law  Company,  and  Bracewell,  LLP,  for 
professional  legal  services  to  the  Hidalgo  County  Regional  Mobility  Authority.    Motion  carried 
unanimously.  
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – March 26, 2024 
 
 

B. Resolution 2024‐20 – Approval of Award of Contract to Plains Capital Bank, to provide Banking Depository        
Services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  
Motion  by Gabriel  Kamel, with  a  second  by Michael Williamson,  to  approve  Resolution  2024‐20  – 
Approval of Award of Contract to Plains Capital Bank, to provide Banking Depository Services for the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  Motion carried unanimously.    
 

C. Resolution 2024‐23 – Consideration and Approval of Award of Contract to Intertek PSI and MEG Engineers 
for Construction Material Testing Lab and Forensic Services of the 365 Tollway Project.    
Motion by Michael Williamson, with a  second by Carlos Del Angel,  to approve Resolution 2024‐23 – 
Consideration and Approval of Award of Contract to Intertek PSI and MEG Engineers for Construction 
Material Testing Lab and Forensic Services of the 365 Tollway Project.  Motion carried unanimously.    
 

D. Resolution 2024‐08 – Consideration and Approval of Award of Contract to MitRes Services, LLC, for the 
Granjeno Wetland Mitigation Site Project.   
Motion  by  Carlos  Del  Angel,  with  a  second  by  Frank  Pardo,  to  approve  Resolution  2024‐08  – 
Consideration and Approval of Award of Contract  to MitRes Services, LLC,  for  the Granjeno Wetland 
Mitigation Site Project in the amount of $5,850,993.87.  Motion carried unanimously.     
 

E.    Resolution 2024‐24 – Consideration and Approval of Change Order number 1 to the contract with SICE, 
Inc.  to  provide  Toll  Collection  System  Installation,  Integration,  and Maintenance  for  the  365  Tollway 
project.  
Motion by Michael Williamson, with a  second by Carlos Del Angel,  to approve Resolution 2024‐24 – 

Consideration and Approval of Change Order Number 1 with Sice,  Inc.  in  the amount of $645,171.17 

revising the contract amount to $14,625,840.17 for the Toll Collection System Installation, Integration, 

and Maintenance in the 365 Tollway project. Motion carried unanimously.  

  
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 

A. None. 

 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. None. 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072  (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 
A. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Change Order Number 5 to that certain contract 

with Pulice Construction Inc. for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
No Action taken.  
 

B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Financial Assistance Agreement with the Texas 
Department of Transportation for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
No Action taken.  
 



HCRMA Minutes – March 26, 2024 
 
 

C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken.  
 

D. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the voluntary acquisition of  real property  for 
various  parcels  for  the  365  Tollway  Project  and  International  Bridge  Trade  Corridor  Project  (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken.  
 

E. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the acquisition,  including  the use of Eminent 
Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken.  
 

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken.  
 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

  There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, motion by Gabriel Kamel, with a second by Frank 
Pardo, to adjourn the meeting at 6:19 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
  ________________________________________              
  S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     Attest:   
 
  ________________________________________ 
  Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 



Item 2B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/15/24                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/23/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF PROJECT AND GENERAL EXPENSE REPORT FROM 

MARCH 7, 2024 TO APRIL 5, 2024     _     
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of project and general expense report for the period from   

March 7, 2024, to April 5, 2024          
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A  Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
     
 Operating Account                $    160,356.27  

 Toll Revenue Series 2022A&B                $ 9,389,541.57  
   Disbursement Account                $           225.00  
 VRF Series 2020A                $               0.00 

 Total Project Expenses for Reporting Period                $  9,550,122.84 
       
       Fund Balance after Expenses       $ 134,342,158  
  
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the project and general expense report for the  

March 7, 2024, to April 5, 2024 as presented.         
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9 Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _     Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 



 
 

   

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: April 15, 2024 

Re: Expense Report for the Period from March 7, 2024, to April 5, 2024 

Attached is the expense report for the period commencing on March 7, 2024, to April 5, 2024. 
 
Expenses for the General Account total $160,356.27, Toll Revenue Series 2022A&B total is  
$9,389,541.57, Disbursement Account total $ 225.00, and the VRF Series 2020A Account is $0.00. The 
aggregate expense for the reporting period is $ 9,550,122.84. 
  
Based on review by this office, approval of expenses for the reporting period is recommended in 
the aggregate amount of $ 9,550,122.84. 
 
This leaves a fund balance (all funds) after expenses of $134,342,158. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



Plains Capital 41

Make Check Payable to Inv Date Amount

City of Pharr 4/10/2024 850.00$                                                                                  

City of Pharr 4/12/2024 127,888.88$                                                                          

City of Pharr 4/12/2024 205.00$                                                                                  

City of Pharr 4/12/2024 7,380.00$                                                                               

City of Pharr 4/12/2024 5,501.71$                                                                               

Pharr Economic Development Corporation 4/4/2024 4,480.00$                                                                               

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu. P.C. 4/5/2024 135.00$                                                                                  

Aim Media Texas 3/31/2024 350.00$                                                                                  

Gateway Printing & Office Supply Inc. 3/20/2024 54.64$                                                                                    

A-Fast Delivery, LLC 4/2/2024 114.50$                                                                                  

Pathfinder Public Affairs 3/31/2024 10,000.00$                                                                            

Pena Designs 4/4/2024 200.00$                                                                                  

Xerox Financial Services 4/11/2024 591.60$                                                                                  

Xerox Financial Services 4/11/2024 219.46$                                                                                  

Ramon Navarro 4/11/2024 474.08$                                                                                  

Credit Card Services 3/3/2024 454.00$                                                                                  

Credit Card Services 3/3/2024 1,017.61$                                                                               

Credit Card Services 3/3/2024 439.79$                                                                                  

Credit Card Services 3/3/2024 -$                                                                                         

160,356.27$                                                                          

 

Wilmington Trust 44/365 Project Construction & Related Costs            2022 A

Pulice Construction, Inc. 4/15/2024 5,798,909.13$                                                                       

Pulice Construction, Inc. 3/20/2024 2,969,884.58$                                                                        Paid ACH

SICE Inc. 4/1/2024 188,941.84$                                                                          

C&M Associates, LLC 3/31/2024 11,433.00$                                                                            

C&M Associates, LLC 3/31/2024 4,500.00$                                                                               

Hidalgo County Irrigation District No. 2 3/1/2024 11,717.50$                                                                            

Sames, Inc. 2/29/2024 9,761.50$                                                                               

Atlas Technical Consultants, LLC 4/3/2024 10,914.97$                                                                            

Terracon Consultants, Inc. 4/6/2024 138,370.00$                                                                          

HDR Engineering, Inc. 4/9/2024 76,997.24$                                                                            

HDR Engineering, Inc. 4/9/2024 76,900.88$                                                                            

HDR Engineering, Inc. 4/9/2024 2,128.74$                                                                               

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP 4/5/2024 2,675.00$                                                                               

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C. 4/5/2024 3,000.00$                                                                               

Texas Department of Transportation 4/15/2024 512.72$                                                                                  

B2Z Engineering 4/4/2024 50,743.97$                                                                            

Raba Kistner, Inc. 4/9/2024 278.05$                                                                                  

Raba Kistner, Inc. 4/9/2024 25,573.16$                                                                            

Blanton & Associates, Inc. 4/4/2024 1,000.26$                                                                               

Blanton & Associates, Inc. 4/4/2024 5,299.03$                                                                               

9,389,541.57$                                                                      

Wilmington Trust 45/Capital Projects CP

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C. 4/5/2024 225.00$                                                                                  

225.00$                                                                                  

 Mar. 6 - Apr. 5

April 2024 

Page 1



Make Check Payable to Inv Date Amount

Wilmington Trust 46/VRF Series 2020A VRF 2020

-$                                                                                                

Sub Total - General -41 (Operating) 160,356.27$                                                
Sub Total - Construction/Related Costs-44 (New Bonds A) 9,389,541.57$                                             
Sub Total - Capital Projects-45 (Disbursement) 225.00$                                                        
Sub Total - VRF Series 2020A-46 (VRF Series 2020A) -$                                                              

Total 9,550,122.84$                                  

Approved: 
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director

Approved: 4/23/2024
Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer

Page 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 2C 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2C                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/15/24                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/23/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 

2024     _______________________      
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of financial report for the month of February 2024.    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:         
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Financial Report for the months of    

February 2024, as presented.             
  
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9.    Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _    Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 































































Item 2D 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                    2D                                  

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          04/15/2024                                                          
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       04/23/2024 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE PERIOD  

ENDING MARCH 31, 2024.           
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of the quarterly investment reports for the period ending March 31,  

2024.              
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Public  

Funds Investment Act Section 2256                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Quarterly Investment Report for the period  

ending March 31, 2024, as presented           
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:        Approved          Disapproved         X    None 
 
8. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
   
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved             None 
 
10. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved       X  None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X     None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:     X    Approved          Disapproved              None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 2E 



 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2E                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/15/24                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/23/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2024 – 25 - CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 (SUPPLEMENTAL) TO THE CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT WITH PULICE CONSTRUCTION, INC, TO REVISE THE PAYMENT SCHEDULE.  

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approving Resolution 2024 – 25 - Approval and Consideration of Contract Amendment Number  

3 (Supplemental) to the construction contract with Pulice Construction, Inc. to revise the payment 
schedule.             

   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024–25 - Approval and 

Consideration of Contract Amendment Number 3 (Supplemental) to the construction 
contract with Pulice Construction, Inc. to revise the payment schedule, as presented.  

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved      X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved      X    None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    _  Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2024-25 

 
APPROVAL AND CONSIDERATION OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 

(SUPPLEMENTAL) TO THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH PULICE CONSTRUCTION, 
INC. TO CLARIFY THE PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 23rd day of April, 2024, by the Board of Directors 
of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), 
acting through its Board_ of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); 

 
WHEREAS, on November 17, 2005, the Texas Transportation Commission (the 

"Commission") created the Authority pursuant to (i) the Act; (ii) Title 43, Texas 
Administrative Code; (iii) a petition of the Hidalgo County Commissioners Court (the 
"County"); and (iv) findings by the Commission that the creation of the Authority would 
result in certain direct benefits to the State of Texas (the "State"), local governments, and 
the traveling public and would improve the State's transportation system; 

 
WHEREAS, on August 8, 2021, the Authority published bid documents 

(including the "Contract") for the 365 Tollway (the "Project"); and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 26, 2021, the Authority issued a conditional award of 
contract to Pulice Construction, Inc.; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 25, 2022, the Authority approved Contract Amendment 

Number 1 to incorporate the terms, concepts, and intention of the VECP Change Order 
No. 1 and Change Order No. 2; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 22, 2022, the Authority approved Contract Amendment 

Number 2 to clarify the payment schedule with Pulice Construction Inc into Contract 
Amendment No. 2 (Supplemental); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board finds it necessary to revise the payment schedule with 

Pulice Construction Inc into Contract Amendment No. 3 (Supplemental).; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority that: 
 

Section I. 
restated. 

The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 



Section 2. The Board hereby approves the Contract Amendment No. 3 
(Supplemental) to the construction contract with Pulice Construction Inc. for the 365 
Tollway Project to revise the payment schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Section 3. The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute Contract 
Amendment No. 3 to the construction contract with Pulice Construction Inc. 

 
***** 

 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A SPECIAL MEETING on the 23rd day of April, 2024, at 
which meeting a quorum was present. 

 

 
       
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 3 (SUPPLEMENTAL) TO THE CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT WITH PULICE CONSTRUCTION INC. FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY 
PROJECT 



 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
365 TOLL PROJECT (Contract No. 0921-02-368) 

 
CONTRACT SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 3 

 
This Contract Supplemental Agreement No. 3 is the third supplemental agreement to that certain 
Contract No. 0921-020368 for the construction of the 365 Toll Project, by and between the Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority" or "Owner") and Pulice Construction, Inc. (the 
"Contractor"), effective as of December 21, 2021 and incorporating the terms and conditions of 
“Construction Contract Administration Manual, Chapter 11 Issues Affecting Payments,” dated 
August, 2021.  
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, on May 19, 2021, and on October 26, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Authority (the 
“Board”) awarded the construction contract for the 365 Tollway Project to Contractor (the “Contract”); 
and, on December 21, 2021, the Contract was entered into by the parties; 
 
WHEREAS, the Contract has been revised by four change orders; 
 
WHEREAS, on August 23, 2022, the Authority approved Contract Supplemental No. 1 clarifying the 
timing for early pay applications and processing documents in order to issue timely payment to the 
Contractor each month for the 365 Tollway;  
 
WHEREAS, on November 22, 2022, the Authority approved Contract Supplemental No. 2 outlining 
submission dates for payment in order to issue timely payment to the Contractor each month for the 365 
Tollway; 
 
WHEREAS, Contract Submittal No. 2 laid out a mid-month payment schedule which conflicts with the 
Authority’s financial and audit reporting, accordingly the parties have agreed to restructuring the payment 
schedule as outlined herein (the “Payment Schedule”);  
 
WHEREAS, the Payment Schedule complies with Texas Department of Transportation’s Construction 
Contract Administration Manual, including Chapter 11, Measurement and Payment (8/21), which 
provides for (i) prompt and fair payment to the Contractor, and (ii) current, orderly, and accurate records 
in order to ensure that the Contractor completes the work as provided in the Contract before making 
payment; and  
 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to further clarify the Contract through this supplemental agreement.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein, the 
undersigned parties agree as follows: 
 
  



 

AGREEMENT 
 
 
Section 1. The recitals set forth above are fully incorporated into this Agreement. 

 
Section 2. The parties agree to a reporting, submittal, and payment schedule, including DBE 

involvement in the Contract as follows:  
 

Milestone Timing Notes 
Daily Activity Report Daily Verified for Progress Payment by Engineer 
Weekly Submittals Each Friday Verified for Progress Payment by Engineer 
Monthly Cut-Off for 
Progress Payments 

The last day of 
each month 

To include work through the last day of the 
month 

Milestone Submission 
Date 

The 5th day of 
the following 
month 

Must include approval and signature from 
Contractor and Engineer for payment 
processing 

Board Packet Cut-Off Third Tuesday 
of each month 

Note: This date may be moved up in 
November and December, when board 
meetings are typically held a week earlier.  
The Board does not generally meet in August.  

Board Meeting Fourth Tuesday Exceptions: August, November and 
December 

 
Payment submittals not received and approved timely will be processed in the next month’s 
Progress Payment.  
 
Section 3.  The schedule reflects the Authority’s desire to pay Contractor for work through the end 
of the month, by the end of the following month. Contractor’s failure to comply with the requirements 
of the schedule or the Contract will result in a payment delay. 
 
 
 

[signatures follow]  



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and attested this Supplemental Agreement No. 
3 on this the 23rd day of April, 2024, by their officers thereunto duly authorized: 
 
 
AUTHORITY 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
  
 
 
By:   
Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 
 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
PULICE CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 
 
By:   
 
Name:      
 
Title:      
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY SURETY 
 
 
 
 
Signature:       
 
Name:       
 
Title:        
 
Date:        



 Item 3A 

MariaAlaniz
Cross-Out



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/15/24                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/23/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2024-21 – APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2023 FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.          

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report prepared  

by Burton McCumber & Longoria, LLP for Fiscal Year 2023.  The report is required by Texas  
Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G §26.65(a) Annual Reports to the  
Commission.             

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-21 – Approval of Fiscal Year  

2023 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report, as presented.    
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: April 15, 2024 

Re: Approval of Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors 
Report 

Background 
Texas Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G §26.65(a) requires annual reports 
to the Texas Transportation Commission, which includes audited financial statements of the Authority’s 
books and records. 
 
 
Goal 
In order to comply with the Texas Administrative Code Requirement, the Board of Director must review 
and accept the Independent Auditor’s Report. 
 
A copy of the Financial Statement and Independent Auditor’s Report prepared by Burton McCumber & 
Longoria is attached for your review and consideration.   
 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors could opt not to accept the Independent Auditor’s Report. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2024-21 – Approval of the Fiscal Year 2023 
Financial Statement and Independent Auditor’s Report is recommended. 
 
 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2024-21 

APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS REPORT 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 23rd day of April, 2024, by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 
October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is required to report to the Texas Department of 
Transportation the annual financial statement and independent auditors report pursuant to the 
Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility 
Authority Reports and Audits), as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority’s 2023 fiscal year commenced on January 1, 2023 and ended 
on December 31, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Board accepts the Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Statement and 
Independent Auditors Report prepared by Burton McCumber & Longoria, LLP; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 

Section 2. The Board accepts the Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Statement and Independent 
Auditors Report, hereto attached as Exhibit A. 

***** 



Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 23rd day of April, 2024, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
       
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT  
FOR  

FISCAL YEAR 2023 



 
 

 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

 

A
U

D
IT

E
D

 A
N

N
U

A
L 

FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
R

E
PO

R
T

 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 



 
 

 

 

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

S. David Deanda Jr. - Chairman 

          Ezequiel Reyna, Jr. Juan Carlos Del Angel 

          Gabriel Kamel Francisco “Frank” Pardo 

          Sergio Saenz Michael J. Williamson 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. 
 
 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

Jose H. Castillo 
 
 
 

Audited Annual Financial Report 
For the Year Ended  
December 31, 2023















































































 

37 

 

 

 

 

Corrective Action for Federal Award Findings 

Reference Number 2023-001 Quality Assurance Program Verification Activities 

    (ALN 20.205) 

 

Corrective Action:  

Upon notification by TxDOT of the non-compliance on the 365 Tollway Project, the Authority took the 
following action: 

1. Suspended work with consultant on November 10, 2023, and subsequently terminated their contract on 
December 21, 2023, for non-compliance with quality assurance requirements.  

2. Enforced the contract with its Owner’s Independent Assurance Program (IAP) consultant to provide 
continuous monitoring of all technician certifications/accreditations for the life of the project.  

3. Procured services to perform forensic investigation and evaluation of the work performed by the non-
compliant technicians to confirm materials meet quality assurance standards. 

 

Proposed Completion Date: The IAP is monitoring all technician certifications/accreditation and will continue 
monitoring for the life of the project. The forensic investigation and evaluation of the 
work performed by the non-compliant technicians will be completed by December 
2024. 

  

Name of contact person: Pilar Rodriguez, P.E., Executive Director 

Contact Information:  (956) 402-3762  prodriguez@hcrma.net     

Board of Directors 
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Vice-Chairman 
Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 
Gabriel Kamel, Director  
Francisco “Frank” Pardo, Director 
Sergio Saenz, Director 
Michael J. Williamson, Director 
  



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/15/24                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/23/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2024-22 – APPROVAL OF 2023 ANNUAL COMPLIANCE 

REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.     
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of Annual Compliance Report to the Texas Department for the  

Fiscal Year 2023.            
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-22 – Approval of the 2023  

Annual Compliance Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority as   
presented.                  

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: April 15, 2024 

Re: Approval of 2023 Compliance Report to the Texas Department of 
Transportation 

Background 
The compliance report is required under the Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, 
Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority Reports and Audits), as amended. 
 
Goal 
In order to comply with the Texas Administrative Code Requirement, the Board of Director must review 
and accept the Compliance Report. 
 
A copy of the 2023 Compliance Report is attached for your review and consideration.   
 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors could opt not to accept the Compliance Report. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2024-22 – Approval of 2023 Compliance 
Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority is recommended. 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2024-22 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 2023 ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 23rd day of April, 2024, by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 
October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is required to submit to the Texas Department of 
Transportation the annual compliance report pursuant to the Texas Administrative Code, Title 
43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority Reports and Audits), as 
amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority’s 2023 fiscal year commences on January 1, 2023 and ended 
on December 31, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has reviewed the annual compliance report for Fiscal Year 
2023; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 

Section 2. The Board approves the annual compliance report for Fiscal Year 2023, hereto 
attached as Exhibit A. 

Section 3. The Board of Directors authorize the Executive Director to submit the 2023 
annual compliance report to the Texas Department of Transportation. 

***** 



 
Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 23rd day of April, 2024, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
       
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY  

FISCAL YEAR 2023 COMPLIANCE REPORT 



Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
Compliance Report 

Texas Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G 

§26.65(a) Annual Reports to the Commission 

Compliance Rule Compliance Statement Certification 
Rule §26.61 Written Reports:   
The annual operating and capital budgets 
adopted by the RMA year.   

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA adopted the FY 2024 
Operating & Capital Budget on 
December 12, 2023. 

Any annual financial information and notices 
of material events required to be disclosed 
under Rule 15c2-12 of the SEC.  

Not applicable.  

To the extent not disclosed in another 
report required in this compliance report, a 
statement of any surplus revenue held by 
the RMA and a summary of how it intends 
to use the surplus revenue.  

Not applicable. HCRMA does not 
have surplus revenue at this 
time. 

 

An independent auditor's review of the 
reports of investment transactions prepared 
under Government Code, §2256.023.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2023 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on April 23, 2024, which 
included a review of investment 
transactions. 

Rule §26.62 Annual Audit:   
The RMA shall maintain its books and 
records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United 
States and shall have an annual financial and 
compliance audit of such books and records.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2023 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on April 23, 2024. 

The annual audit shall be submitted to each 
county or city that is a part of the RMA 
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal 
year, and conducted by an independent 
certified public accountant. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA has made the financial 
statement and independent 
auditors report available to all 
interested parties. 

All work papers and reports shall be 
retained for a minimum of four years from 
the date of the audit. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA’s record retention policy 
in compliance with this 
requirement. 

Rule §26.63 Other Reports to Counties and 
Cities: 

  

Provide other reports and information 
regarding its activities promptly when 
requested by the counties or cities. 

HCRMA is in compliance. All reports and activities are 
posted on the HCRMA web site 
at www.hcrma.net. 

Rule §26.64 Operating Records:   
The Department will have access to all 
operating and financial records of the RMA. 
The executive director will provide 
notification if access is desired by the 
department. 

HCRMA is in compliance.  

 


	Notice of Agenda
	Agenda Item WS1 - Review of Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item WS2 - Review of Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Compliance Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item WS3 - Review of the Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending March 31, 2024
	Agenda Item 1A - Report on Program Management Activity for 365 Tollway Project 
	Agenda Item 1B - Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project 
	Agenda Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held March 26, 2024
	Agenda Item 2B - Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from March 7, 2024 to April 5, 2024. 
	Agenda Item 2C - Approval of Financial Reports for February 2024
	Agenda Item 2D -  Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending March 31, 2024
	Agenda Item 2E - Resolution 2024-25 – Approval and Consideration of Contract Amendment Number 3 (Supplemental) to the Construction Contract with Pulice Construction, Inc. to Revise the Payment Schedule
	Agenda Item 3A - Resolution 2024-21 – Consideration and Approval of Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.
	Agenda Item 3B - Resolution 2024-22 – Consideration and Approval of Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Compliance Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.



